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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of and for the 3rd quarter period ended September 30, 2023  
(with comparative figures as of December 31, 2022 and for the period ended September 30, 2022)



 

 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER - ILOILO, INC.. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022 
                       

 Note 

2023 

Unaudited 

2022 

Audited 

ASSETS    

Current Assets    

Cash 3,5,6,18 P21,498,190 P11,514,560 

Other receivables  8,928,691 2,425,116 

Advances to contractors 7 52,150,244 58,043,017 

Advances to suppliers 7 936,953 1,551,654 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets  811,894 559,910 

Total Current Assets  84,325,972 74,094,257 

Noncurrent Assets    

Property and equipment - net 8 528,288,080 447,444,919 

Construction-In-Progress 9 1,748,146,328 1,536,817,631 

Advances to related party 13 39,030,125 35,608,713 

Other non-current assets 18 5,015,171 5,015,171 

Total Noncurrent Assets  2,320,479,704 2,024,886,434 

  P2,404,805,676 P2,098,980,691 

    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

Current Liabilities    

Accounts payable and other liabilities  10,18 P216,241,333 P132,799,504 

Loans payable to individuals 11,18 48,068,862 20,766,700 

Notes payable - current portion 12,18 5,338,258 28,747,867 

Total Current Liabilities  269,648,453 182,314,071 

Noncurrent Liability    

Loan payable to related party 13,18 323,434,969 237,834,969 

Notes payable - net of current portion 12,18 953,399,648 857,748,031 

 Total Noncurrent Liabilities  1,276,834,617 1,095,583,000 

Equity     

Share Capital (net) 14 239,950,000 235,670,000 

Share Premium 14 923,045,000 783,283,829 

Deficit   (304,672,394) (197,870,209) 

Total Equity   858,322,606 821,083,620 

  P2,404,805,676 P2,098,980,691 

    

See Selected Notes to the Financial Statements.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER- ILOILO, INC.. 

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND 2022 
  

 Note 

2023 

Unaudited 

2022 

Unaudited 

SALES  P - P - 

COST OF SALES  - - 

GROSS PROFIT  - - 

OTHER INCOME  17,524 8,164 

GROSS INCOME  17,524 8,164 

GENERAL AND ADMIN EXPENSES 15 (69,818,199) (14,933,443) 

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS  (69,800,675) (14,925,279) 

FINANCE COST 12 (37,001,509) (21,506,428) 

NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX  (106,802,184) (36,431,707) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  (P106,802,184) (P36,431,707) 

    

See Selected Notes to the Financial Statements.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER- ILOILO, INC.. 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND 2022 
  

 Share Capital Share Premium Deficit Total 

As at December 31, 2021 (Audited) P235,060,000 P726,166,619 (P145,648,293) P815,578,326 

Additional share capital 230,000 - - 230,000 

Share premium - 44,400,210 - 44,400,210 

Net loss for the quarter - - (36,431,707) (36,431,707) 

As at September 30, 2022 (Unaudited) P235,290,000 P770,566,829 (P182,080,000) P823,776,829 

As at December 31, 2022 (Audited) P235,670,000 P783,283,829 (P197,870,209) P821,083,620 

Additional share capital 4,280,000 - - 4,280,000 

Share premium - 139,761,171 - 139,761,171 

Net loss for the quarter - - (106,802,184) (106,802,184) 

As at September 30, 2023 (Unaudited) P239,950,000 P923,045,000 (P304,672,394) P858,322,606 

     

See Selected Notes to the Financial Statements.     



 

 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER - ILOILO, INC.. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND DECEMBER 31, 2022 
  

 Note 2023 2022 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES    

Net loss before  (P106,802,184) (P52,221,916) 

Adjustments for:    

Depreciation and amortization 8 2,033,455 888,271 

Interest income 6 (17,524) (10,028) 

Interest expense 12 (37,001,509) (30,288,654) 

Operating cash outflow before working capital changes  (141,787,762) (81,632,327) 

Decrease (increase) in:    

Advances to contractors 10 5,892,773 (2,956,180) 

Advances to suppliers 10 614,701 5,120,090 

Prepayments and other current assets  (251,984) (233,897) 

Advances to related party 13 (3,421,412) - 

Other Receivable  (6,503,575) 799,497 

Increase in accounts payable and other liabilities 10 83,441,829 39,243,989 

Net cash used in operations  (62,015,430) (39,658,828) 

Interest received 6 17,524 10,028 

Net cash used in operating activities  (61,997,906) (39,648,800) 

CASH FLOWS FROM AN INVESTING 

ACTIVITIES    

Additions to property and equipment (net) 8 (83,296,207) (30,520,238) 

Additions to construction in progress 9 (210,909,108) (172,790,751) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (294,205,315) (203,310,989) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Additional share premium 14 139,761,171 57,117,210 

Proceeds from bank loan  95,651,617 31,485,190 

Proceeds from loans payable to related party 13 85,600,000 129,000,000 

Interest paid 12 37,001,509 30,288,654 

Payments of principal loans payable to individuals 11 27,302,162 (2,233,300) 

Additional share capital 14 4,280,000 610,000 

Payment of principal on bank loans 12 (23,409,609) (6,307,736) 

Net cash provided by financing activities  366,186,850 239,960,018 

NET DECREASE IN CASH  9,983,630 (2,999,771) 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD  11,514,560 14,514,331 

CASH AT END OF PERIOD  P21,498,190 P11,514,560 

    

See Selected Notes to the Financial Statements.    
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ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER – ILOILO, INC. 
 

SELECTED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND STATUS OF OPERATIONS 
 

Corporate Information 

 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER – ILOILO, INC. (Formerly: Allied Care Experts 

(ACE) Medical Center - Iloilo Inc.) (the “Company”) was incorporated as a domestic corporation 

under Philippine laws and was duly registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 

(SEC) under registration no. CS201423954 on December 10, 2014. 

 

On August 2, 2021, the Securities and Exchange Commission approved the Company’s 

amendment of its corporate name to Asia Pacific Medical Center – Iloilo, Inc. 

 

The Company’s primary purpose is to establish, maintain, operate, own and manage hospitals, 

medical and related healthcare facilities and businesses such as but without restriction to clinical 

laboratories, diagnostic centers, ambulatory clinics, condo-hospitals, scientific research 

institutions and other allied undertakings and services which shall provide medical, surgical, 

nursing, therapeutic, paramedic or similar care, provided that purely professional, medical or 

surgical services shall be performed by duly qualified and licensed physicians or surgeons who 

may or may not be connected with the hospitals and whose services shall be freely and 

individually contracted by the patients. 

 

On December 27, 2018, the SEC En Banc under SEC MSRD Order No.37 approved effective 

the registration statement of the Company for 240,000 shares broken down as follows: the 

primary offering to be sold by way of initial public offering for 36,000 shares equivalent to 3,600 

blocks or 10 shares per block at an offer price ranging from ₱250,000 up to ₱400,000 per block. 

Issued and outstanding Founder shares (600) and common shares (203,400) are not included in the 

offer. These shares have been registered and may now be offered for sale or sold to the public 

subject to full compliance with the provisions of the Securities Regulation Code and its Amended 

Implementing Rules and Regulations, Revised Code of Corporate Governance, and other 

applicable laws and orders as may be issued by the Commission. 

 

The registered office of the Company was also amended from 2nd floor, Iloilo Medical Society 

Building, Luna Street, Brgy. Bantud, Lapaz, Iloilo City to Brgy. Ungka, Jaro Iloilo City, where 

the hospital construction site is located. 

 

Status of Operations 

 

Currently, the Company is constructing a multidisciplinary medical facility (hospital) which was 

expected to be fully completed by December 2018. However, due to circumstances beyond the 

control of Management, this was moved to second half of 2023 in which the hospital is estimated 

to be fully completed and operational. 
 

The Company has incurred an accumulated deficit of P304,67 million and P197,87 million as of 

September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, as a result of various general and 

administrative expenses incurred while the Company is still in its pre-commercial operation 

stage. It is expected to generate positive result upon commencement of its commercial operations. 
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2. FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND BASIS OF PREPARATION 

AND PRESENTATION 
 

Statement of Compliance 
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine 

Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), which includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine 

Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), Philippine Interpretation Committee (PIC) and Standing 

Interpretations Committee (SIC) as approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council 

(FRSC) and Board of Accountancy (BOA) and adopted by the SEC. 

 

Basis of Preparation and Presentation 
 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except when otherwise 

stated. 

 

Functional and Presentation Currency 
 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of 

the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The 

Company’s financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Company’s 

functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest peso, except when 

otherwise indicated. 
 

 

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND 

INTERPRETATIONS 
 

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards Effective in 2022 

 

The Company adopted all applicable accounting standards and interpretations as at December 31, 

2022. The new and revised accounting standards and interpretations that have been published by 

the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and approved by the FRSC in the 

Philippines, were assessed by the Management to be applicable to the Company’s financial 

statements as follows: 

  

Amendments to PFRS 3, References to the Conceptual Framework 

 

The amendments update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of 

the 1989 Framework. They also add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope 

of PAS 37, an acquirer applies PAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present 

obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 

Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise 

to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. 

 

The amendments also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent 

assets acquired in a business combination. 

 

The amendments are effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on 

or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after January 2022. Early 

application is permitted if an entity also applies all other updated references (published together 

with the updated Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier. 
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The adoption of the amendments has no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the 

Company does not plan to enter into business combination. 

 

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use 

 

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 

any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds while 

bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognizes such sales proceeds and 

related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with  

PAS 2 Inventories. 

 

The amendments also clarify the meaning of ‘testing whether an asset is functioning properly’.  

PAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the 

asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services, for 

rental to others, or for administrative purposes. 

 

If not presented separately in the statements of comprehensive loss, the financial statements shall 

disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items produced 

that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the statements 

of comprehensive loss include(s) such proceeds and cost. 
 

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment 

that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the 

financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. 

 

The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an 

adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as 

appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented. 

 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early 

application permitted. 

 

The Management has assessed that the adoption of the amendments has no impact on the 

Company’s financial statements as the Company does not generate proceed when testing the 

equipment before its intended use. 

 

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 

 

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate 

directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental 

costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor or materials) and an allocation of 

other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the 

depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). 

 

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 

the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. 

Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially 

applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other 

component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application. 

 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early 

application permitted. 
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The Management has assessed that the adoption of the amendments has no impact on the 

Company’s financial statements as the Company has not yet started its commercial operations.  

 

Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle 

 

Amendments to PFRS 1 – Subsidiary as a first-time adopter 

 

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter 

later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of 

the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in PFRS1:D16 (a) can now also elect to 

measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount that 

would be included in the parent’s consolidated financial statements, based on the parent’s date 

of transition to PFRS Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and 

for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar 

election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the exemption in PFRS 1: D16 (a). 

 

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early 

application permitted. 

 

The Management has assessed that the adoption of the amendments has no impact on the 

Company’s financial statements since the Company is not a subsidiary of any company. 
 

Amendments to PFRS 9 – Fees in the ’10 percent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities 

 

The amendment clarifies that in applying the ‘10 percent’ test to assess whether to derecognize a 

financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) 

and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf. 

 

The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and exchanges that occur on or after 

the date the entity first applies the amendment. 

 

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early 

application permitted. 

 

Management is still evaluating the impact of the amendment on the Company’s financial 

statements. 

 

Amendments to PAS 41 – Taxation in fair value measurements 

 

The amendment removes the requirement in PAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation 

when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in PAS 41 with the 

requirements of PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and 

discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pretax or post-tax cash flows and 

discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement. 

 

The amendment is applied prospectively, i.e. for fair value measurements on or after the date an 

entity initially applies the amendment. 

 

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early 

application permitted. 

 

The Management has assessed that the adoption of the amendments has no impact on the 

Company’s financial statements since the Company has no biological assets 
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Standards Issued but not yet Effective: 

 

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the 

Company does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a 

significant impact on the financial statements. The Company intends to adopt the following 

pronouncements when they become effective. 

 

Effective Beginning on or after January 01, 2023 

 

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 

 

PFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 

of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of PFRS 17 is to ensure that 

an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This Information 

gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on 

the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 

 

The key principles in PFRS 17 are that an entity: 

• identifies as insurance contracts those contracts under which the entity accepts significant 

• insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the 

policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the 

policyholder; 

• separates specified embedded derivatives, distinct investment components and distinct 

performance obligations from the insurance contracts; 

• divides the contracts into groups that it will recognize and measure; 

• recognizes and measures groups of insurance contracts at: 

➢ a risk-adjusted present value of the future cash flows (the fulfilment cash flows) that 

incorporates all of the available information about the fulfilment cash flows in a way 

that is consistent with observable market information; plus (if this value is a liability) 

or minus (if this value is an asset) 

➢ an amount representing the unearned profit in the group of contracts (the contractual 

service margin)  

• recognizes the profit from a group of insurance contracts over the period the entity 

provides insurance cover, and as the entity is released from risk. If a group of contracts is 

or becomes loss-making, an entity recognizes the loss immediately; 

• presents separately insurance revenue (that excludes the receipt of any investment 

component), insurance service expenses (that excludes the repayment of any investment 

components) and insurance finance income or expenses; and 

• discloses information to enable users of financial statements to assess the effect that 

contracts within the scope of PFRS 17 have on the financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows of an entity. 

 

PFRS 17 includes an optional simplified measurement approach, or premium allocation approach, 

for simpler insurance contracts. 

 

PFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct 

participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general model is simplified if 

certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium 

allocation approach. 

 

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of 

future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account market 

interest rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guarantees. 
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An amendment issued on June 2020 and adopted by FSRSC on August 2020 addresses concerns 

and implementation challenges that were identified after PFRS 17 was published. 

 

PFRS 17 must be applied retrospectively unless impracticable, in which case the modified 

retrospective approach or the fair value approach is applied. 

 

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial application is the start if the annual 

reporting period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the 

beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of initial application. 

 

The standard (incorporating the amendments) is effective for periods beginning on or after January 

1, 2025, as amended by the FSRSC from January 1, 2023. This is consistent with Circular Letter 

No. 2020-62 issued by the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 

by two (2) years after its effective date as decided by the IASB. Earlier application is permitted. 

 

The future adoption of the standard will not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial 

statements as the Company does not issue insurance contracts. 

 

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 

and Its Associate or Joint Venture 

 

The amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution 

of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state 

that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business 

in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, 

are recognized in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests 

in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of 

investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that 

is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognized in the former parent’s profit 

or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.  

 

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application 

of the amendments is permitted. 

 

Management is still evaluating the impact of the amendments on the Company’s financial 

statements. 

 

Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 

 

The amendments to PAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in 

the   statements of financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, 

liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items. 

 

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on 

rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is unaffected 

by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, 

explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, 

and introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to 

the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or service. 

 

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after  

1 January 2023, with early application permitted. 

 

Management is still evaluating the impact of the amendments on the Company’s financial 

statements. 
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Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure Initiative – Accounting 

Policies 

 

The amendments are as follows: 

• An entity is now required to disclose its material accounting policy information instead of its 

significant accounting policies; 

• Several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy 

information and to give examples of when accounting policy information is likely to be 

material; 

• The amendments clarify that accounting policy information may be material because of its 

nature, even if the related amounts are immaterial; 

• The amendments clarify that accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s 

financial statements would need it to understand other material information in the financial 

statements; and 

• The amendments clarify that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information, 

such information shall not obscure material accounting policy information. 

 

The amendments are applied prospectively. The amendments to PAS 1 are effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted. 

 

The management is still evaluating the impact of the new standard on the Company’s financial 

statements. 

 

Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates 

 

With the amendment, accounting estimates are now defined as “monetary amounts in financial 

statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.” 

 

The amendment clarified that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or 

new developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an input 

or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting 

estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors. 

 

A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current period’s profit or loss, or the profit 

or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to the current 

period is recognized as income or expense in the current period. The effect, if any, on future periods 

is recognized as income or expense in those future periods.  

 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and changes 

in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that 

period. Earlier application is permitted. 

 

The management is still evaluating the impact of the amendments on the Company’s financial 

statements 

 

Amendments to PAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising 

from a Single Transaction 

 

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the 

amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give 

rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. 
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Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may arise 

on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and 

affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon recognition of a lease 

liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at the commencement date of a 

lease. 

 

Following the amendments to PAS 12, an entity is required to recognize the related deferred tax 

asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability 

criteria in PAS 12. 

 

The Board also adds an illustrative example to PAS 12 that explains how the amendments are 

applied. 

 

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest 

comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an 

entity recognizes: 

• A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 

against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized) and a deferred tax 

liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with: 

• Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 

• Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts 

recognized as part of the cost of the related asset 

• The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening 

balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date 

 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, 

with earlier application permitted. 

 

Management is still evaluating the impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

 

Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 

 

The amendments to PFRS 16 that require a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities 

arising from a sale and leaseback transaction in a way that does not result in recognition of a gain 

or loss that relates to the right of use it retain. 

 

The amendments add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions 

that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be accounted 

for as a sale. 

 

The amendments require the seller-lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’ 

such that the seller-lessee does not recognize a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained 

by the seller-lessee, after the commencement date. The amendments do not affect the gain or loss 

recognized by the seller-lessee relating to the partial or full termination of a lease. 

 

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after  

January 1, 2024, with early application permitted. Still subject to approval of the Board of 

Accountancy and Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standard Council. 

 

The management is still evaluating the impact of the amendments on the Company’s financial 

statements. 
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Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 

 

The amendments to PAS 1 to specify that only covenants an entity must comply with on or before 

the reporting period should affect classification of the corresponding liability as current or  

non-current. 

 

The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before 

the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the 

classification of the liability as current or non-current). Such covenants affect whether the right 

exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only after 

the reporting date (e.g., a covenant based on the entity’s financial position at the reporting date that 

is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date). 

 

The amendments specify that the right to defer settlement is not affected if an entity only has to 

comply with a covenant after the reporting period. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement 

of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve months after the 

reporting period, an entity discloses information that enables users of financial statements to 

understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting 

period. This would include information about the covenants (including the nature of the covenants 

and when the entity is required to comply with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and 

facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with 

the covenants. 

 

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after  

January 1, 2024, with early application permitted. Still subject to approval of the Board of 

Accountancy and Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standard Council. 

 

The management is still evaluating the impact of the amendments on the Company’s financial 

statements. 
 

 

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING 

POLICIES 
 

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial 

statements are summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all years 

presented, unless otherwise stated. 

 

Current versus Noncurrent Classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position based on 

current/noncurrent classification. 

 
An asset is current when it is: 

• expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 

• held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

• cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other assets as noncurrent.  
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A liability is current when: 

• it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 

• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

• there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 

 

All other liabilities are classified as noncurrent. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively. 

 

The Company also modifies classification of prior year amounts to conform to current year's 

presentation. 

 

Fair Value Measurement 

 

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability, takes place either: 

▪ in the principal market for the asset or liability; or 

▪ in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability, the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. 

 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 

best interest. 

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input 

that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 

• Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities 

• Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement is unobservable 

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 

reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of 

the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

 

Financial Instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 

Financial Assets 
 

Date of Recognition 

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial 

position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. In the case 

of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, 

is done using settlement date accounting. 

 
"Day 1" Difference 

Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable 

current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables 

include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the 

transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in profit or loss. In cases where there is no 

observable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price as the best estimate of fair 

value and recognizes “Day 1” difference in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when 

the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate 

method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference. 

 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair 

value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). 

 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. The 

Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 

not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. 

 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through 

OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ 

on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed 

at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured 

at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refer to how it manages its financial 

assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result 

from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets 

classified and measured at amortized cost are held within a business model with the objective to 

hold the financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified 

and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both 

holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. 

 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 

by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade 

date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
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Subsequent Measurement 

 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

• financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments) 

• financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses 
(debt instrument) 

• financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains 
or losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) 

• financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments) 

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) 

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 

asset is derecognized, modified or impaired. 

 

The Company's financial assets at amortized cost includes cash (excluding petty cash fund), 

receivable – others and other non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) as at reporting dates. 
 

Financial assets fair value through OCI (debt instruments) 

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation, if 

any, and impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statements of profit or loss and 

computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair 

value changes are recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change 

recognized in OCI is recycled to profit and loss. 

 

The Company does not have debt instruments designated at fair value through OCI as at reporting 

dates. 

 

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments) 

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity instruments as 

equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity 

under IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is 

determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are 

recognized as other income in the statements of profit or loss when the right of payment has been 

established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as recovery of part of the cost of 

the financial assets, in which case, such gains are recovered in OCI. Equity instruments designated 

at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment. 

 

The Company does not have equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI (FVOCI) as at 

reporting dates. 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statements of financial position at 

fair value with net changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had 

not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments 

are recognized as other income in the statements of profit or loss when the right of payment has been 

established. 

 

The Company does not have financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at reporting dates. 
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Derecognition 

 

The financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 

financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s statements of 

financial position) when: 

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

• the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed 

an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 

under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred 

substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of 

the asset. 

 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 

‘pass-through’ agreement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of 

ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risk and rewards of 

the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset 

to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated 

liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on the basis that reflects the 

rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 

the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that 

the Company could be required to repay. 

 

Reclassification 

 

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model 

for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day 

of the first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification date). 

 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 

assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of 

the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss. 

 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 

assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost of 

the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI. 

 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at 

amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. 

 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at 

amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the new 

amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the 

investment using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any 

gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. 

 

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be recognized 

in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is subsequently 

impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to 

profit or loss. 

 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at 

FVOCI, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. Meanwhile, 
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for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at 

FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit 

or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification date. 

 

Impairment 

 

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments 

not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual 

cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to 

receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash 

flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 

integral to the contractual terms. 

 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from 

default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit 

exposures for which there has been significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss is 

required for credit expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 

default (a lifetime ECL). 

 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 30 days past due. 

However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when 

internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding 

contractual amounts in full or in part before taking into account any credit enhancements held by 

the Company. A financial asset is written off in full or in part when there is no reasonable expectation 

of recovering the contractual cash flows. 

 

Write-off 

 

Financial assets are written-off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the 

financial asset either in its entirety or a portion of it. This is the case when the Company determines 

that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows 

to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. 

 

Financial Liabilities 
 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments 

in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and 

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

 

Subsequent Measurement 

 

The measurement of financial liabilities is classified into two categories: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

• Financial liabilities at amortized cost (loans and borrowings) 
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are designated upon initial recognition at fair 

value through profit or loss. 

 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 

repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 

into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 

defined by PFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless 

they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in profit or loss. 

 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 

designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied. 
 

The Company has not designated any financial liability at fair value through profit or loss at the 

end of each reporting period. 

 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (loans and borrowings) 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are subsequently 

measured at amortized cost using the ElR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss 

when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 

fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortization is included as "Finance cost" 

in the statements of comprehensive loss. 

 

This category generally applies to accounts payable and other liabilities (excluding government 

liabilities), loans payable to individuals, loans to a related party and notes payable. (Notes 10, 11, 

12 and 13) 

 

Derecognition 

 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability 

and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 

recognized in the statements of comprehensive loss. 

 

Fair Value Option 

 

The Company may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset or liability that 

would otherwise have to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive 

loss to be measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so would eliminate or significantly 

reduce an accounting mismatch or otherwise results in more relevant information. 
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Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity 

 

A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to: 

• Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; 

• Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that 

are potentially unfavorable to the Company; or 

• Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 

financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. 

 

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial 

asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability. 

 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements 

of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts 

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. 
 

The Company assesses that it has currently enforceable right to offset if the right is not contingent 

on a future event and is legally enforceable in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company 

and all of the counterparties. 

 

Cash 
 

Cash in the statements of financial position comprise of cash in banks and on hand that are readily 

convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

Advances 
 

Advances to related parties, advances to contractors and advances to suppliers are payments made 

in advance, such as down payments for a contractual project and acquisition of equipment. 

Advances are initially recorded at the amount of cash paid. These will be subsequently reclassified 

to property and equipment upon completion of the project and/or once the equipment is actually or 

constructively delivered. 

 

Receivable – others on the other hand, is recognized if an amount of consideration that is 

unconditional is due from a related party (i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment 

of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets earlier discussed. 

 

Prepayments and Other Current Assets 
 

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are initially 

recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are charged to 

profit or loss as they are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of time. 

 

Other current assets represent assets of the Company which are expected to be realized or consumed 

within one year or within the Company’s normal operating cycle whichever is longer. Other current 

assets are measured initially and subsequently presented in the financial statements at cost. 
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Property and Equipment 
 

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of property and 

equipment consists of: 

• its purchases price, including import duties and non-refundable purchases taxes, after 

deducting trade discounts and rebates; and 

• any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 

for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and medical and hospital equipment that 

have already been recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that 

future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing 

asset, will flow to the Company. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expenses in 

the period in which those are incurred. 

 

At the end of each reporting period, items of property and equipment measured using the cost model 

are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Land is 

carried at cost less any impairment in value. Land is not depreciated. 
 

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their 

estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are 

reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change 

since the last reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its 

recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

 

An item of property and equipment shall be derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. When assets are derecognized, their costs, accumulated 

depreciation and amortization and accumulated impairment losses are eliminated from the accounts. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount 

and are recognized in the statements of comprehensive loss. 

 

Fully depreciated and fully amortized assets are retained by the Company as part of property and 

equipment until these are derecognized or until they are no longer in use. 

 

Intangible Assets 
 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less 

accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. These are amortized using the 

straight–line method. If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in amortization 

rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the amortization is revised prospectively to 

reflect the new expectations. 

 

When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated 

amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or 

loss is reflected in profit or loss for the period. 
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Construction-in-progress 
 

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost. This includes the costs related to the construction of the 

hospital building and installation of medical equipment, property development costs and other direct 

costs. Cost of borrowings and any additional costs incurred in relation to the project are recognized 

in this account. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets 

are completed and ready for its intended use. 

 

The Company recognizes the effect of revisions in the total project cost estimates in the year in which 

these changes become known. Any impairment loss from the construction project is charged to 

operations during the period in which the loss is determined. 

 

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
 

At each reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 

extent of the impairment loss, if any. When the asset does not generate cash flows that are 

independent from the other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash- 

generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value- 

in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 

amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized as an 

expense immediately. 

 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the 

revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed 

the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for 

the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income. 

 

Equity 
 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company 

after deducting all its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the 

proceeds received, net of direct issue cost. 

 

Share capital 

Share capital is recognized as issued when the stock is paid for or subscribed under a binding 

subscription agreement and is measured at par value. 

 

Share premium 

Share premium is the difference between the issue price and the par value of the stock and is known 

as securities premium. The shares are said to be issued at a premium when the issue price of the 

share is greater than its face value or par value. 

 

Deficit 

Deficit represents accumulated losses incurred by the Company. Deficit may also include effects of 

changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standard’s transitional provision. 
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Revenue Recognition 
 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are 

transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company 

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses its revenue 

arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company 

has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically 

controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. 

 

Revenue is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a 

promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or 

service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of 

revenue recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation. 

 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

 
Service income from hospital services 

The Company renders primary healthcare services to its patients over a single period of time in the 

ordinary course of business. Revenue is recognized as the services are provided. 

 
Sale of medical goods 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control of the asset is transferred to 

the customer. 
 

The Company does not have revenues from hospital services nor sale of medical goods since it is 

still in its construction stage, thus, not yet in commercial operations as at March 31, 2022. 

 

Other Revenues 

 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the 

asset. 

 
Other income 

Other income is income generated outside the normal course of business and is recognized when it is 

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can be measured reliably. 

 

Expense Recognition 
 

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefit related to a 

decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses 

are recognized in profit or loss: (a) on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred 

and the earning of specific items of income; (b) on the basis of systematic and rational allocation 

procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and the 

association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or (c) immediately when an 

expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future economic 

benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statements of financial position as 

an asset. 

 

Expenses in the statements of comprehensive loss are presented using the function of expense 

method. General and administrative expenses constitute costs attributable to general, administrative, 

and other business activities of the Company and are expensed as incurred. 
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Related Party Relationships and Transactions 
 

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly 

through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the other 

party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or 

among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or 

among the reporting enterprise and its key management personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In 

considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 

relationship, and not merely the legal form. 

 

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties, 

regardless of whether a price is charged. 

 

Employee Benefits 
 

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for services rendered 

by its employees. 

 

Short-term Benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are those benefits expected to be settled wholly before twelve months 

after the end of the annual reporting period during which employee services are rendered, but do not 

include termination benefits. Short-term benefits given by the Company to its employees include 

salaries and wages, social security, health insurance and housing contributions, short-term 

compensated absences, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits. 
 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed 

as the related service is provided. 

 

Retirement or Post-employment Benefits 

The Company is subject to the provisions of Republic Act No. 7641 (known as the Retirement Law). 

This requires that in the absence of a retirement plan, an agreement providing benefits for retiring 

employees in the private sector, an employee upon reaching the age of 60 years or more, but not 

beyond 65 years, who has served at least 5 years in service, may retire and shall be entitled to a 

retirement pay equivalent to at least ½ month’s salary for every year of service, fraction of at least 6 

months being considered as 1 whole year. The current service cost is the present value of benefits, 

which accrue during the last year. 

 

As at reporting dates, the Company has not yet established a Retirement Benefits Plan for its 

employees since no employee is entitled to date. 

 

Borrowing costs 
 

Borrowing costs are generally recognized as expense in the year in which these costs are incurred. 

However, borrowing costs that directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying asset are capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities 

necessary to prepare the asset for intended use are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs 

are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the asset is available for their intended use. It 

includes interest expense, finance charges in respect of finance leases and exchange differences 

arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to 

interest costs. 

 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 

expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 
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Foreign Currency Translations 
 

Translations denominated in foreign currencies are initially recorded using the exchange rates 

prevailing at transaction dates. Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are 

translated using the closing exchange rates at reporting dates. Exchange gains or losses arising from 

foreign currency translations are credited to or charges against current operations. 

 

Leases 
 

The Company determines whether arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting must be 

applied. The costs of the agreements that do not take the legal form of a lease but convey the right to 

use an asset are separated into lease payments if the entity has the control of the use or access to the 

asset, or takes essentially all of the outputs of the asset. The said lease component for these 

arrangements is then accounted for as finance or operating lease. 

 

The Company as lessee 

  

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, 

except when another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 

benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are 

recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are 

recognized as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental 

expense on a straight-line basis, except when another systematic basis is more representative of the 

time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. 

 

Income Tax 
 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax expense. 

 

Current tax 
 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit 

as reported in the statements of comprehensive loss because it excludes items of income or expense 

that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or 

deductible. 

 

Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 

the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computations of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 

assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences 

can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference 

arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a 

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax 

liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 

goodwill. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting dates and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 

of the asset to be recovered. 
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 

in which the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

Earnings (Loss) per Share 
 

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing income (loss) attributable to equity holders 

of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, 

after giving retroactive effect to any bonus issued/declared during the year, if any. 

 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit or loss for the year attributable to 

ordinary equity holders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

 

Provisions and Contingencies 
 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 

be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by 

discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 

the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

 

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as 

interest expense. When the Company expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the 

reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain 

and its amount is estimable. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statements of 

comprehensive loss, net of any reimbursement. 

 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Company financial statements. They are disclosed 

unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent 

assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic 

benefits is probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are 

appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow 

of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the Company 

financial statements. 

 

Events after the Reporting Period 
 

The Company identifies events after the end of each reporting period as those events, both favorable 

and unfavorable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial 

statements are authorized for issue. The financial statements of the Company are adjusted to reflect 

those events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.  

Non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period are disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements when material. 
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
 

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, management is required to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are 

not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on the 

historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ 

from these estimates. 

 

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical 

experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 

reasonable under the circumstances. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the 

financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. 

 

Judgments in Applying the Company’s Accounting Policies 
 

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following 

judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the 

amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

 

Business Model Assessment 

 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the 

business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups 

of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment 

includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is 

evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and 

how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. Monitoring is part of 

the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining 

financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate, whether there has 

been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. 

 

Significant Increase of Credit Risk 

 

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of 

financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using internal 

valuation techniques using generally accepted market valuation models. The input to these models 

is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimates are used 

in establishing fair values. These estimates may include considerations of liquidity, volatility and 

correlation. 

 

Functional currency 

 

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Company, the 

functional currency of the Company has been determined to be the Philippine Peso. It is the currency 

that mainly influences the Company’s operations. 
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Classification of Financial Instrument 

 

The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a 

financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the 

contractual agreement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity 

instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its 

classification in the statement of financial position. 

 

Determination of Whether a Lease is a Finance or Operating Lease 

 

The evaluation of whether an arrangement contains a lease is based on its substance. An arrangement 

is, or contains, a lease when the fulfillment of the arrangement depends on a specific asset or assets 

and the arrangement conveys the right to use the asset. 

 

Operating Lease Commitments – Company as Lessee 
 

Based on Management evaluation, the lease arrangements entered into by the Company as a lessee 

are accounted for as operating leases because the Company has determined that the lessor will not 

transfer the ownership of the leased assets to the Company upon termination of the lease. 

 

Recognition of Deferred Income Taxes 

 

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many 

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary 

course of business. Recognition of deferred income taxes depends on management's assessment of 

the probability of available future taxable income against which the temporary difference can be 

applied. 
  

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

 

Property and equipment is periodically reviewed to determine any indications of impairment. 

Though the management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values are 

reasonable and appropriate, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the 

assessment of the recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment loss could have a material 

adverse effect in the results of operations. 

 

Provisions and Contingencies 

 

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. Policies 

on recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of contingencies are discussed in Note 4, 

subheading “Provisions and Contingencies.” 

 

Estimates and Assumptions 
 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

financial reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

 

Assessment for ECL on Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 

 

The Company determines the allowance for ECL using general approach based on the probability- 

weighted estimate of the present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life of financial assets 

at amortized cost. ECL is provided for credit losses that result from possible default events within 

the next 12-months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

in which case ECL is provided based on lifetime ECL. 
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When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company considers 

reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is 

relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited to, the 

following factors: 

• Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade; 

• Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and 

• Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower. 

 

The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 30 days past due to be the latest 

point at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does not 

represent a significant risk in credit risk such as when non-payment was an administrative oversight 

rather than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower. 

 

The Company has assessed that the ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost is not material 

because the transactions with respect to these financial assets were entered into by the Company 

only with reputable banks and companies with good credit standing and relatively low risk of 

defaults. Accordingly, no provision for ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost was 

recognized as at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022. 
 

The carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortized cost are as follows: 
 

September 30, 2023 

 

December 31, 2022 

Cash in banks* P21,443,190 P11,484,560 

Receivable - others 8,928,691 2,425,116 

Other non-current assets** 5,015,000 5,015,000 

 P35,386,881 P18,924,676 

*Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱55,000 and 30,000 as at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, 

respectively. 

**Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022. 

 

Assessment for Impairment of Non-financial Assets 

 

The Company assesses impairment on non-financial assets whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets or group of assets may not be 

recoverable. The relevant factors that the Company considers in deciding whether to perform an 

asset impairment review include, among others, the following: 

• Significant underperformance of a business in relation to expectations; 

• Significant negative industry or economic trends; and 

• Significant changes or planned changes in the use of the assets. 

 

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 

recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the 

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal or value in 

use. The fair value less cost of disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-

length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

 

No impairment loss on non-financial assets was recognized as at September 30, 2023 and  

December 31, 2022. 



- 27 - 

 

 

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are as follows:  

 
September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022 

Construction-in-progress P1,748,146,328 P1,536,817,631 

Property and equipment (net) 528,288,080 447,444,919 

Advances to contractors 52,150,244 58,043,017 

Advances to related parties 38,982,653 35,595,773 

Advances to suppliers 936,953 1,551,654 

 P2,368,504,258 P2,079,452,994 

 
Estimating useful lives of assets 

  

 

The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets based on 

the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of 

property and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed periodically and are updated if 

expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial 

obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful 

lives of property and equipment and intangible assets is based on collective assessment of industry 

practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, 

that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about 

by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any 

period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the 

estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets would increase recorded 

operating expenses and decrease non-current assets. 

 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the 

assets: 

 

Categories   Estimated Useful Life 
 

Office equipment 3 - 5 years 

Medical equipment 5 years 

Hospital equipment 5-10 years 

Kitchen Tools 3-5 years 

Books/Periodicals 3 years 
 

As at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company’s property and equipment had 

carrying amounts of P528,288,080 and ₱ 447,444,919, respectively. (Note 8) 

 

Asset impairment other than goodwill 

 

The Company performs an impairment review when certain impairment indicators are present. 

 

Determining the recoverable amount of property and equipment, which require the determination 

of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of 

such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the 

financial statements. Future events could cause the Company to conclude that property and 

equipment are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on 

the financial condition and results of operations. 

 

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and estimations. 

While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant 

changes in the assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and may 

lead to future additional impairment charges. 
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As at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, Management believes that the recoverable 

amounts of the Company’s property and equipment approximate it carrying amounts. Accordingly, 

no impairment loss was recognized in both periods. 

 
 

 

6. CASH    

This account consists of: 
  

 
September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022 

 

Petty cash fund P55,000 P30,000  

Cash in banks 21,443,190 11,484,560  

 
P21,498,190 P11,514,560  

 

Cash includes petty cash fund and in banks that are unrestricted and available for current operations. 

This is stated in the statements of financial position at face amount. 

 

Cash in banks generally earn interest at the prevailing bank’s deposit rates. Interest earned from 

bank accounts amounted to P17,524 and P8,164 in September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and 

is presented as part of “other income (charges)” in the statements of comprehensive loss. 

 
 

7. ADVANCES TO CONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS 
 

This account consists of:  

 

 
September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022 

 

Advances to contractors1) P52,150,244 P58,043,017  

Advances to suppliers2) 936,953 1,551,654  

 P53,087,197 P59,594,671  

 
1) Advances to contractors represent advances for each awarded project activity and is liquidated 

via deduction, on a pro-rata basis, from the contractor’s periodic progress billings. 

 
2) Advances to supplier are down payments made to suppliers of medical equipment and/or 

construction materials ordered. The amounts represent 15% - 50% of the total contract price of the 

items purchased. 
  



 

 

 
 

8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (net) 
 

Reconciliation of property and equipment (net) as at September 30, 2023 is as follows: 

 
  

Land 

Office 
Equipment 

Medical 
Equipment 

Hospital 
Equipment 

Kitchen 
Tools 

Books/ 
Periodicals 

 
Total 

 
Cost: 
At beginning of year 

 

P28,291,630 

 

P9,049,589 

 

P297,878,140 

 

P113,541,569 

 

P1,072,375 

 

P11,545 

 

P449,844,848 

Additions - 6,998,203 52,858,821 21,866,083 1,153,510 - 82,876,617 
Reclassification - - (5,225,000) (24,557,082) 29,782,082 - - 

At end of year 28,291,630 16,047,792 345,511,961 110,850,570 32,007,967 11,545 532,721,465 

 
Accumulated depreciation: 
At beginning of year - 2,393,750 - - - 6,179 P2,399,929 
Depreciation          - 1,966,830 - - 65,339 1,287 2,033,456 

At end of year - 4,360,580 - - 65,339 7,466 4,433,385 

Net carrying value, September 30, 2023 P28,291,630 P11,687,212 P345,511,961 P110,850,570 P31,942,628 P4,079 P528,288,080 

 

Reconciliation of property and equipment (net) as at December 31, 2022 is as follows: 

 
  

Land 
Office 

Equipment 
Medical 

Equipment 
Hospital 

Equipment 
Kitchen 

Tools 
Books/ 

Periodicals 
 

Total 

 
Cost: 
At beginning of year 

 
 

P 28,291,630 

 
 

P2,842,592 

 
 

P292,224,738 

 
 

P94,913,982 

 
 

P1,039,762 

 
 

P11,545 

 
 

P419,324,609 

Additions - 6,206,637 5,653,402 18,627,587 32,613 - 30,520,239 

At end of year 28,291,630 9,049,589 297,878,140 113,541,569 1,072,375 11,545 449,844,848 

 
Accumulated depreciation: 
 At beginning of year 

 

 
– 

 

 
1,515,529 

 
 

– 

 
 

– 

 
 

– 

 
 

4,462 

 
 

1,519,991 

Depreciation – 878,221 – – – 1,717 879,938 

At end of year – 2,393,750 – – – 6,179 2,399,929 

Net carrying value, December 31, 2022 P28,291,630 P6,655,839 P297,878,140 P113,541,569 P1,072,375 P5,366 P447,444,919 
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Depreciation on kitchen tools, medical and hospital equipment shall commence when it is available 

for use – when it is in the location and condition necessary to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by the Management. 

 

The medical equipment has been paid in full and already recorded in the books. However, the 

same is still stored in the warehouse of the supplier awaiting delivery upon completion of the 

Company’s hospital building. These are subject of a chattel mortgage as disclosed in Note 12. 

 

The Company has a total contract commitment to purchase medical equipment totaling 

P454,370,959 as of September 30, 2023. Advances to related parties amounting to P39,030,125 was 

recognized in the books as it represents advance payment for medical equipment. 

 

The land covered by TCT No. 095-2015000546 and TCT No. 095-2015000547 represent the area 

located at Barangay Sambag, Jaro District, Iloilo City, Panay Island, where the Company is 

currently constructing a multidisciplinary special medical facility (hospital) and is the subject of a 

real estate mortgage. (Note 9 and 12) 

 

Management has reviewed the carrying values of property and equipment as at September 30, 2023 

and December 31, 2022, for any impairment. Based on the results of its evaluation, there are no 

indications that these assets are impaired. 
  

 

9. CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS 
 

This account consists of accumulated costs for the construction of the Company’s hospital building 

project which is still ongoing as at reporting dates: 

 
 

   

Amount of 

Transactions 

September 30, 

2023 

Amount of 

 Transactions  

December 31, 

2022 

 

Construction in progress P211,328,697 P1,748,146,328 P138,098,133 P1,536,817,631  

 

During the development and construction of the hospital building, borrowing costs on interest- 

bearing loans were capitalized. (Note 12) 

 

Other related costs pertain to planning and project management expenses directly attributable to the 

construction project. 

 

As certified by the Construction Manager of the Company, the percentage of completion as of report 

date is pegged at ninety-eight-point ninety three percent (98.93%). 
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10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES  

This account consists of: 
  

 
September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022 

 

Accounts payable - contractors and suppliers (1) P155,271,823 71,116,830  

Retention payable (2) 37,589,006 50,203,580  

Accrued interest payable (3) 12,388,032 6,302,656  

Accounts Payable - PTP (4) 5,883,815 4,705,000  

Accrued expenses (5) 3,459,761 7,104  

Statutory liabilities (6) 1,648,896 464,334  

 P216,241,333 P132,799,504  

 

(1) Accounts payable – contractors and suppliers represent unpaid billings of the contractors 

and balances of equipment already installed in the construction building and as of 

reporting date. 

 

(2) Retention payable refers to the amount withheld by the Company from the contractor's 

periodic progress billings as provided for in their respective contract. This shall be released 

to the contractor, net of deductions, if any, upon full completion and turnover of the project 

and final acceptance by the Company. 

 

(3) Accrued interest payable refers to interest expense incurred on loans from bank. (Note 12) 
 

(4) Accounts Payable – PTP pertain to the amounts paid by the investing doctors who 

intended to practice at the hospital.  

 

(5) Accrued expenses are normally settled within one year from financial reporting date. 

 

(6) Statutory liabilities pertain to tax withheld from payment to suppliers, employees’ 

compensation and statutory contribution to SSS, PHIC and HDMF. 

 

 

11. LOANS PAYABLE TO INDIVIDUALS 
 

This account constitutes non-interest bearing and demandable obligations to third parties which was 

primarily used by the Company to support the preliminary financing aspect of the construction of 

the hospital structure. This account has a balance of P48,068,862 and 20,766,700, as at September 

30, 2023 and as at December 31, 2022, respectively. 
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12. NOTES PAYABLE 

 

 

 

  

This account consists of:  
   

 
September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022 

 

Notes payable - current portion P5,338,258 P28,747,867  

Notes payable - net of current portion 953,399,648 857,748,031  

 P958,737,906 P886,495,898  

 

The Land Bank of the Philippines – Iloilo Branch (LBP – Iloilo) extended to the Company several 

term loans equivalent to a credit line facility totaling Php1.060 billion to finance the construction of 

hospital structure and the acquisition of various medical equipment and fixtures. 

 

The foregoing credit line facility consists of a term loan 1 the availment of which was granted on 

2015 amounting to Php465 million allotted to finance the construction of hospital building.  

 

However, term loan 2 availment amounting to Php35 million was eventually cancelled or 

withdrawn. Subsequently, the bank approved on July 31, 2019, term loan 3 in the amount of Php195 

million for hospital structure and term loan 4 amounting to Php400 million allotted for the 

acquisition of medical equipment and fixtures. 

 

The loan is available in several drawdowns, payable ranging from 8 years to 10 years in ladderized    

quarterly amortizations, including grace periods ranging from 1 year to 4 years on principal 

amortization, with an interest rate of 5% to 6.63% per annum payable quarterly in arrears from date    

of loan release. 

 

The loan is collateralized and secured by a Real Estate Mortgage (REM) on both parcels of land 

owned by the Company, including present and future improvements thereon and Chattel Mortgage 

on various medical equipment, furniture and fixtures. (Note 8) 

 

Total finance costs incurred on loans for financing the construction of hospital building amounted 

to P37,001,509 and P31,903,488 for the 3rd quarter period ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, 

respectively, and was capitalized to construction-in-progress account in the statements of financial 

position (see Note 9). 
 

The Company incurred finance costs on loans for acquisition of medical equipment and fixtures 

amounting to P23,908,200 and P7,626,325 for the 3rd quarter period ended September 30, 2023 

and 2022, respectively, and is reflected in the statements of comprehensive loss. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

In the normal course of business, the Company transacts with companies/individuals, which are considered related parties. The following were carried out 

with related parties as at 3rd quarter period September 30, 2023, and December 31, 2022: 

 

Advances to related party: 

 
Category 

As at September 30, 2023 As at December 31, 2022  

 Amount of 
Transactions 

Outstanding 
Balance 

Amount of 
Transactions 

Outstanding 
Balance Terms and Conditions 

Receivable – others (various ACE Hospitals) P - P47,472 P - P47,472 Unsecured, interest-

bearing, no term, 

collectible in cash 

Endure Medical, Inc. (a)  - 32,079,869 - 32,079,869 

TIPP Digital Solutions Inc.(b) 3,386,880 6,902,784 - 3,515,904 

 P3,386,880 P39,030,125 P - P35,643,245  

  

Advances from related party: 
  

Category 
As at September 30, 2023 As at December 31, 2022  

 Amount of 
Transactions 

Outstanding 
Balance 

Amount of 
Transactions 

Outstanding 
Balance Terms and Conditions 

Phil Pharmawealth, Inc.(c)   P85,600,000 P323,434,969 P129,000,000 P237,834,969 Unsecured, noninterest, 

bearing, demandable, no 

term, payable in cash. Endure Medical, Inc. (a)  10,856,458 44,446,326 23,050,390 33,589,868 

 P96,456,458 P367,881,295 P152,050,390 P271,424,837  
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(a) Advances to/from - Endure Medical, Inc. 

 

The Company engaged the services of an indentor (Endure Medical, Inc.) which has 

relatively significant influence over a key management personnel of the Company. The 

Indentor facilitates the importation and acquisition of medical equipment, furniture and 

fixtures for the hospital allotment. 

 

The foregoing is classified as a related party transaction(s) (pursuant to the condition 

set forth in PAS 24), wherein the key management personnel of Endure Medical, Inc. 

has significant influence over the Company and its key officer. 

 

(b) Advances to TIPP Digital Solutions Inc. 

 

The account represents a 50% downpayment made for the acquisition of Healthcare 

Management Information System. 

 

(c) Advances from Phil Pharmawealth, Inc. 

 

The account represents an unsecured interest-bearing loan from Phil Pharmawealth, Inc., 

which has relatively significant influence over a key management personnel of the 

Company. The loan was incurred to use for payment of the interest with Land Bank of 

the Philippines (LBP). The loan bears an interest ranging from 5.50%-6.50% per annum 

and is payable subject to the availability of funds. The Company, however, reserves the 

right to defer settlement in favor of prioritizing payments relative to hospital 

construction. 

 

Key Management Personnel Compensation 
 

Key management compensation amounted to P3,782,167 and P3,939,792 for the periods ended 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 respectively. These amounts are incorporated in the salaries and 

allowances account in the financial statements. 

 

 

14. SHARE CAPITAL    

Details of the Company’s share capital as at September 30, 2023: 
  

 
No. of Shares Amount 

Authorized share capital – ₱1,000 par value    

Founder’s shares 600 P600,000  

Common shares 239,400 239,400,000  

Total authorized share capital 240,000 P240,000,000 
 

    

Subscribed share capital:    

Founder’s shares 600 P600,000  

Common shares 239,350 239,350,000  

Total subscribed share capital 239,950 P239,950,000  

    

Paid-up share capital:    

Founder’s shares 600 P600,000  

Common shares 239,350 239,350,000  

Total paid-up share capital 239,950 P239,950,000  
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Details of the Company’s share capital as at December 31, 2022:  
 

No. of Shares 

 
 

Amount 

 

Authorized share capital – ₱1,000 par value 
Founder’s shares 

 
600 

 
P600,000 

 

Common shares 239,400 239,400,000  

Total authorized share capital 240,000 P240,000,000  

    

Subscribed share capital: 
Founder’s shares 

 
600 

 
P600,000 

 

Common shares 235,070 235,070,000  

Total subscribed share capital 235,670 P235,670,000  

    

Paid-up share capital 

 
Founder’s shares 

 
 

600 

 
 

P600,000 

 

Common shares 235,070 235,070,000  

Total paid-up share capital 235,670 P235,670,000  

 

In 2018, the Company filed a Registration Statement covering its proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO) 

of its 36,000 common shares. Said registration statement was approved on December 27, 2018, in 

accordance with the provisions of the SEC’s Securities Regulation Code. (Note 1) 

 

As of date, pursuant to the SEC’s approval, the Company issued a total of 31,290 common shares. 

The total related share premium after deducting transaction costs associated with the issuance of 

shares amounted to P766,085,029.  The common share offer price amounted to P250,000 up to 

P400,000 per block [one (1) block = ten (10) common shares. 

 

Founder shares have the exclusive right to vote and be voted upon as directors for five (5) years 

from the date of SEC registration. The founder shares’ exclusive right to vote and be voted upon 

expired on December 10, 2019.  It now has the same rights as that of the common shares. 
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15.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 

Details of the account consist of: 

   September 30, 2023 September 30, 2022 

Salaries and Allowances (1)    P40,588,051  P8,514,987 

Taxes and Licenses (2)   6,344,689   941,235 

Utilities (3)  5,060,214 - 

SSS, PHIC, and HDMF Contributions (1)  4,593,517 508,310 

Office Supplies (4)   3,660,589 239,100 

Board Meetings and Meals (5)   2,577,030 1,307,659 

Depreciation    2,033,455   471,700 

Professional Fees, Audit Fees and Legal Fees  1,998,552   1,220,903 

Security Services (6)   660,508 904,339 

Advertising Expenses   591,167   55,000 

Postage and Communication Expenses 332,900   95,166 

Trainings and Seminars   304,339   128,739 

Transportation and Travel  202,125 43,183 

Web Hosting and Computer Software/Hardware Exp 163,869   146,595 

Repairs and Maintenance  103,979 22,351 

Bank Service Charges   10,533 6,550 

Rentals    3,500   9,500 

Amortization of Intangible Asset  -  8,333 

Miscellaneous   589,182 309,793 

TOTALS 
   

P69,818,199  P14,933,443 

 
1) The material increases in salaries, as well as the corresponding increase in employees’ benefits - 

SSS, PHIC, and HDMF contributions - can be attributed to the increase in manpower as the 

Company prepares for the start of commercial operations. 
 

(2) The increase in taxes and licenses is primarily due to the various licenses that the Company is 

processing, which is also in relation to the hospital’s opening. 
 

(3) Increase in utility expense can be related to the opening of various hospital admin offices.   

 
(4) Increased usage of office supplies given the need for documentation in relation to the opening 

of the hospital.  

 
(5) Improved attendance in board meetings other plus more meetings because of the intended opening  

of the hospital primarily caused the increase in the amount. 

 
6) Security services expenses decreased due to proper take of applicable expenses.  
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16. INCOME TAX 
 

Computation of income tax due (RCIT or MCIT, whichever is higher) is as follows: 

 

 
Regular Corporate Income tax (RCIT) September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022 

Net loss before income tax 

Add (deduct) reconciling items: 

(P106,802,184) (P52,221,917) 

Interest expense arbitrage - 2,507 

Unrealized forex gain - (109,901) 

Interest income subjected to final tax (17,524) (10,028) 

Net operating loss (106,784,660) (52,339,339) 

Tax rate 25% 25% 

RCIT P - P - 

 

For the quarter ended September 30, 2023, and the year ended December 31, 2022, the 

Company did not generate any revenues subject to minimum corporate income tax. 

 

As at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company has NOLCO which can be 

carried forward as a deduction for the next three consecutive taxable years immediately 

following the year of such loss, under certain conditions, as provided under Section 34(D) of 

the tax code. Details are as follows:  

Date 

Incurred Amount 

Applied/ 

Expired 

 

Remaining 

Balance 

 

Expiry 

September 30, 2023 P106,784,660   P - P106,784,660  2026 

December 31, 2022 52,339,339 - 52,339,339  2025 

 P159,123,999 P - P159,123,999  

 

As at September 30, 2023, the Company has NOLCO in taxable year 2021 and 2020 which can 

be carried forward as a deduction for the next five consecutive taxable years immediately 

following the year of such loss, pursuant to the Bayanihan to Recover as One Act. Details are 

as follows:  

Date 

Incurred Amount 

Applied/ 

Expired 

 

Remaining 

Balance 

 

Expiry 

December 31, 2021 P43,425,573   P - P43,425,573  2026 

December 31, 2020 34,889,728 - 34,889,728  2025 

 P78,315,301 P - P78,315,301  

 

 

As at September 30, 2023, The Company recognized deferred tax asset amounted to Php171, 

which arises from the excess MCIT recognized in 2020. This deferred tax asset can be charged 

against income of the next three years and is presented as part of “other non-current assets” in 

the statement of financial position.   

 

The Company provides full valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets from NOLCO since 

management believes that the Company will not be able to generate future taxable income in 

which such can be applied.  
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17. BASIC LOSS PER SHARE  

Basic loss per share is computed as follows: 
    

 
 September 30, 2023 December 31,  2022 

 

Loss attributable to ordinary shares 

Divide by: Weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding 

 (P106,802,184) 

 
239,950 

(P52,221,917) 
 

235,670 

 

Basic loss per share  (P445.10) (P221.59)  

 

There are no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at September 30, 2023 and  

December 31, 2022. 
 

 

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 

Financial Risk 
 

The Company’s financial risk management policies seek to minimize potential adverse effects of 

financial risk such as credit risk, liquidity risk, and interest rate risk to its financial assets and 

financial liabilities. 

 

The Company’s principal financial assets and financial liabilities consist of cash (excluding petty 

cash fund), receivable - others, other non-current assets payable (excluding deferred tax assets), 

accounts payable and other liabilities (excluding government liabilities), loans payable to 

individuals, loans payable to a related party and notes payable which arise from operations. 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these 

risks and these are summarized below: 

 

Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the risk that the third party will default on its obligation to the Company and cause the 

Company to incur financial loss. The Company's business policy aims to limit the amount of credit 

exposure to any individual client and financial institution. The Company has credit management 

policies in place to ensure that contracts are entered into with clients who have sufficient financial 

capacity and good credit history. 

 

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost are composed of cash (excluding petty cash fund), 

receivable – others and other noncurrent assets (excluding deferred tax assets). The Company limits 

its exposure to credit risk by investing its cash only with banks that have good credit standing and 

reputation in the local and international banking industry. These instruments are graded in the top 

category by an acceptable credit rating agency and, therefore, are considered to be low credit risk 

investments. 

 

Receivable - others and other non-current assets are being monitored on a regular basis to ensure 

timely execution of necessary intervention efforts to minimize credit losses. 

 

It is the Company’s policy to measure ECL on the above instruments on a 12-month basis. However, 

when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be 

based on the lifetime ECL. 

 

When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company considers 

reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is 
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relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited to, the 

following factors: 

• Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade; 

• Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and 

• Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower. 

 

The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 30 days past due to be the latest 

point at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does not 

represent significant credit risk such as when non-payment arising from administrative oversight 

rather than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower. 

 

The table below presents the summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk and shows the credit 

quality of the assets by indicating whether the assets are subjected to 12-month ECL or lifetime 

ECL. Assets that are credit-impaired are separately presented. 

 

As at September 30, 2023 

 

Financial assets at amortized cost  
 

 12-month 

ECL 

Lifetime ECL - 

not credit 

impaired 

Lifetime ECL  

- credit 

impaired 

 

Total 

Cash in banks** P21,443,190 P - P - P21,443,190 

Receivable – others 8,928,691 - - 8,928,691 

Other non-current assets* - 5,015,000 -     5,015,000 

 P30,371,881 P5,015,000 -     P35,386,881 

*Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at Sept. 30, 2023. 

**Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱55,000 as at Sept. 30, 2023. 
 

 

 

 

As at December 31, 2022 

 

 

Financial assets at amortized cost 

 12-month 

ECL 

Lifetime ECL - 

not credit 

impaired 

Lifetime ECL  

- credit 

impaired 

 

Total 

Cash in banks** P11,484,560 P - P - P11,484,560 

Receivable - others 2,425,116 - - 2,425,116 

Other non-current assets* - 5,015,000 -     5,015,000 

 P13,909,676 P5,015,000 -     P18,924,676 
 

*Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at December 31, 2022. 

**Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱30,000 as at December 31, 2022. 
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Interest Rate Risk 

 

Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate. 

 

The primary source of the Company’s interest rate risk relates to its cash in banks, notes payable 

and loans payable to a related party (Notes 6, 12 and 13). 

 

Cash in banks are subject to prevailing market interest rates. Considering that such financial assets 

have short-term maturities, the Company does not foresee any cash flow and fair value interest rate 

risks to have a significant impact on the Company’s operations. 

 

Likewise, notes payable and loans payable to a related party are subject to prevailing market interest 

rates. As such, these are subject to fluctuations in market interest rates for a given period. 

 

The Company has no established policy in managing interest rate risk. Any favorable or unfavorable 

effect of fluctuation on interest rates is absorbed by the Company. The effect of such is presented 

in the Company’s financial performance. 

 

Liquidity Risk 

 

In the management of liquidity, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed 

adequate by the management to finance the Company’s operations and mitigate the effects of 

fluctuations in cash flows. 

 

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities 

based on contractual and undiscounted payments: 

 

As at September 30, 2023 

 

 On Demand Within 1 year 

More than 1 

year but less 

than 5 years 

More than 5 

years Total 

Financial Assets: 
    

 
Cash* P21,443,190 P -    P -    P -    P21,443,190 

Receivable - others 8,928,691 -    -    -    8,928,691 

Other non-current assets** - - 5,015,000    -        5,015,000 

 P30,371,881 P -  P5,015,000    P -    P35,386,881 

*Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱55,000 as at September 30, 2023. 

**Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at September 30, 2023. 

 

 On Demand 

Within 1 

year 

More than 1 

year but less 

than 5 years 

More than 

5 years Total 

Financial Liabilities:      

Accounts payable and other liabilities*** P214,592,437 P - P - P - P214,592,437 

Loans payable to individuals 48,068,862 - - - 48,068,862 

Loans payable to related party 323,434,969 - - - 323,434,969 

Notes payable 5,338,258 274,304,772 679,094,876 - 958,737,906 

   P591,434,526  P274,304,772  P679,094,876  P - P1,544,834,174 

***Excluding government liabilities amounting to P1,648,896 as at September 30, 2023.
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As at December 31, 2022      

   More than 1   

   year but less More than 5  

 On Demand Within 1 year than 5 years Years Total 

Financial Assets:      

Cash* P11,484,560 P - P - P - P11,484,560 

Receivable - others 2,425,116 - - - 2,425,116 

Other non-current assets** - - 5,015,000 - 5,015,000 

 P13,909,676 P - P5,015,000 P- P18,924,676 

*Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱30,000 as at December 31, 2022. 

*Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at December 31, 2022. 

 

 On Demand Within 1 year 

More than 1 

year but less 

than 5 years 

More than 5 

years Total 

Financial Liabilities:      

Accounts payable and other liabilities*** P132,335,170 P - P - P - P132,335,170 

Loans payable to individuals 20,766,700 - - - 20,766,700 

Loans payable to related party 237,834,969 - - - 237,834,969 

Notes payable 28,747,867 246,784,629 610,963,402 - 886,495,898 

   P419,684,706  P246,784,629  P610,963,402  P - P1,277,432,737 

***Excluding government liabilities amounting to P464,334 as at December 31, 2022. 
 

 

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's financial assets and financial 

liabilities are presented below: 

 

 

 As at September 30, 2023 As at December 31, 2022 

 Carrying Amounts Fair Values Carrying Amounts Fair Values  
Financial Assets:          

Cash* P21,443,190 P21,443,190 P11,484,560 P11,484,560  

Receivable – others 8,928,691 8,928,691 2,425,116 2,425,116  

Other non-current assets**     5,015,000     5,015,000 5,015,000 5,015,000  

  P35,386,881 P35,386,881 P18,924,676 P18,924,676  

*Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱55,000 as at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022. 

**Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022 

 

 As at September 30, 2023 As at December 31, 2022 

 

Carrying Amounts Fair Values Carrying Amounts Fair Values  
Financial Liabilities:     

 

Accounts payable and other liabilities*** P214,592,437 P214,592,437 P132,335,170 P132,335,170  

Loans payable to individuals 48,068,862 48,068,862 20,766,700 20,766,700  

Loans payable to a related party 323,434,969 323,434,969 237,834,969 237,834,969  

Notes payable 958,737,906 958,737,906 886,495,898 886,495,898  

  P1,544,834,174 P1,544,834,174 P1,277,432,737 P1,277,432,737  

***Excluding government liabilities amounting to P1,648,896 and P 464,334 as at September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, 

respectively 
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Assumption Used to Estimate Fair Values 
 

The carrying amounts of cash, receivable - others, accounts payable and other liabilities, loans 

payable to individuals, and loans payable to a related party approximate their fair values as at 

reporting dates due to the short-term nature of the transactions. 

 

The carrying amount of notes payable approximates its fair value due to pre-determined contractual 

cash flow arrangements based on an applicable and regular re-priceable Philippine Dealing System 

Treasury (PDST) floating rate covering the term of the loan, as provided by the financial lending 

institution. 

 

The fair value of refundable deposits cannot be measured reliably since there was no comparable 

market data and inputs for the sources of fair value such as discounted cash flows analysis. 

However, Management believes that their carrying amounts approximate their fair value. 

 

 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining the fair value of financial assets and 

liabilities: 

• Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

• Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability 

 

The table below summarizes the classification of the Company's financial assets and liabilities 

based on the fair value measurement hierarchy: 
As at September 30, 2023 

 Quoted Prices in 

Active Markets 

Significant 

Observable Inputs 

Significant Un- 

observable Inputs 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Financial Assets:    

Cash*                P21,443,190 P - P - 

Receivable - others -                               8,928,691 - 

Other non-current assets** -           5,015,000 - 

 P21,443,190              P13,943,691 P - 

*Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱55,000 as at September 30, 2023. 

**Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at September 30, 2023. 

 
Financial Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other 

 

liabilities*** P - P214,592,437 P - 

Loans payable to individuals - 48,068,862 - 

Loans payable to a related party - 323,434,969 - 

Notes payable - 958,737,906 - 

 P - P1,544,834,174 P - 

***Excluding government liabilities amounting to P1,648,896 as at September 30, 2023. 
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As at December 31, 2022 

 Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 

Significant 
Observable Inputs 

Significant Un- 
observable Inputs 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Financial Assets: 

Cash* 

 
                      P11,484,560 

 
P - 

 
P - 

Receivables                                       – 2,425,116 - 

Other non-current assets** –                5,015,000 - 

 P11,484,560 P7,440,116 P - 

*Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱30,000 as at December 31, 2022. 

**Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at December 31, 2022. 

 

Financial Liabilities:  
Accounts payable and other liabilities*** P – P132,335,170 P - 

Loans Payable to individuals – 20,766,700 - 

Loans Payable to Related Party – 237,834,969 - 
Notes payable – 886,495,898 - 

 P – P1,277,432,737 P - 

***Excluding government liabilities amounting to P 464,334 as at December 31, 2022. 
 

There were no reclassifications made between the different fair value hierarchy level as at 

September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022. 

 

Capital Management 
 

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy 

capital ratios in order to support its business, pay existing obligations, and maximize shareholders 

value. 

 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in 

economic conditions. To maintain or adjust capital, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 

to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the 

objectives, policies or processes during the periods ended September 30, 2023 and  

December 31, 2022. 

 

The following table pertains to the account balances the Company considers its core economic 

capital: 
 

September 30, 2023 December 31, 2022 
Share capital P239,950,000 P235,670,000 

Share premium 923,045,000 783,283,829 

Deficit (304,672,394) (197,870,209) 

 P858,322,606 P821,083,620 

 

The loan agreement with Landbank provides certain restrictions and requirements with respect to, 

among others, maintenance of financial ratios (debt-to-equity ratio of 80:20), percentage of 

ownership of specific shareholders, creation of property encumbrances and additional guarantees for 

the incurrence of additional long-term indebtedness. 

 

As of reporting dates, all covenants and requirements are complied with except for the required 

financial ratio wherein the financial institution was made aware of since the Company has not yet 

started commercial operations. 
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19. IMPACT OF CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) UPDATE 
 

The full impact of the lingering COVID-19 outbreak remains as a formidable threat to the normal 

stability of the Company and may, at times, impose operational compromises which negatively 

influences the industry workforce and the logistical chain. In response to such evolving challenges, 

as well as combat any impending surges, the Company has adopted certain measures (like hybrid 

work arrangements, office pre-testing and spacing procedures, including virtual communication 

instructions & practices) to strike a balance between its calculated business activities and the 

mandatory health protocols. 

 

However, since the Company is still on its formative or organizational stage(s) and has not 

commenced full commercial operations, the Management have ascertained that the foregoing 

current circumstances of the prevailing influence on the Company’s financial standing or status 

indicates neither a material impact nor an uncertainty exists that would affect the financial condition 

and operational results of the Company. 

 

 

20. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The unaudited financial statements of the Company as of and for the 3rd quarter periods ended 

September 30, 2023 (with comparative figures as of December 31, 2022 and for the period ended 

September 30, 2022), were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on 

_________________.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





   

SCHEDULES 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER – ILOILO, INC. 

(Formerly: Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Iloilo Inc.) 

As at September 30, 2023 

 

Schedule A. Financial Assets 
Name of issuing entity 
and association of each 

issue 

Number of shares or 
principal amount of 

bonds and notes 

Amount shown in the 
statements of financial 

position 

Value based on market 
quotation at the end of 

reporting period 

Income received and 

accrued 

Cash N/A P21,443,190 N/A P17,524 

Receivable – others N/A 8,928,691 N/A  

Other non-current 

assets* 

N/A 5,015,000 N/A  

  P35,386,881  P17,524 

*Excluding petty cash fund amounting to ₱55,000 as at September 30, 2023 

**Excluding deferred tax assets amounting to ₱171 as at September 30, 2023 
 

 

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties, and 

Principal Stockholders 

Name and designation of 

Debtor 

Balance at 
Beginning of 

Period Additions 

Amounts 

Collected 

Amounts 

Written Off Current Not Current 

Balance at End 

of Year 

Endure Medical, Inc. P32,079,869 P - P - P - P32,079,869 P - P32,079,869 

TIPP Digital Solutions Inc. 3,515,904 3,386,880 - - 6,902,784 - 6,902,784 

Receivable – others (various 
ACE Hospitals) 

47,472 - - - 47,472 - 47,472 

 P35,643,245 P3,386,880 P - P - P39,030,125 P - P39,030,125 

 

 

Schedule C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during 

Consolidation of Financial Statements 

Name and designation of 
Debtor 

Balance at 

Beginning of 
Period Additions 

Amounts 
Collected 

Amounts 
Written Off Current Not Current 

Balance at End 
of Year 

- Not Applicable - 

 

 

Schedule D. Long –Term Debt 

Title of issue and type of 

obligation 

Amount authorized by 

indenture 

Amount shown under caption 
“Current portion of long-term 

debt” in related statement of 

financial position 

Amount shown under caption 

“Long-term debt” in related 

statement of financial position 

Non-interest-bearing Notes Payable P958,737,906 P5,338,258 P953,399,648 

 

 

Schedule E. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long –Term Loans from Related Companies) 

Name of Related Party Balance at beginning of Period Balance at end of Period 

Phil Pharmawealth, Inc. P237,834,969 P323,434,969 

Endure Medical, Inc. 33,589,868 44,446,326 

 P271,424,837 P367,881,295 

 

 

  



Schedule F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers 
Name of issuing entity 

of securities 

guaranteed by the 
Company for 

which this statement is 

filed 

Title of issue of each 

class of securities 

guaranteed 

Total amount guaranteed 

and outstanding 

Amount owned by 

person for which 

statement is filed Nature of guarantee 

- Not Applicable - 

 

 

Schedule G. Capital Stock 

Title of issue 

Number of 

shares 
authorized 

Number of shares 

issued and 
outstanding as shown 

under relate 

statement of financial 
position caption 

Number of shares 

reserved for 
options, 

warrants, 

conversion 
and other rights 

Number of 
shares held 

by 

related 
parties 

Directors, 

officers and 
employees Others 

Founder’s Shares 600 600 - - - - 

Common Shares 239,400 239,350 - - - - 

 240,000 239,950 - - - - 

 

 

  



   

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER – ILOILO, INC. 

(Formerly: Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Iloilo Inc.) 

 

Statement of Accumulated Deficit 

As at September 30, 2023 

 

 
Accumulated Deficit, beginning of year P197,870,209 

Net loss incurred for the year   106,802,184 

Accumulated Deficit, ending of year   P304,672,394 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER – ILOILO, INC. 

(Formerly: Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Iloilo Inc.) 

 

MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN AND AMONG THE COMPANIES IN 

THE GROUP, ITS ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CO-SUBSIDIARIES 

As at September 30, 2023 

 

 

-Not Applicable- 

  



   

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER – ILOILO, INC. 

(Formerly: Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Iloilo Inc.) 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS 

As of September 30, 2023 

(with comparative figures as of December 31, 2022) 

 

 

Financial KPI   Definition   30-Sep-23 31-Dec-22 

1. Liquidity           

  

Quick Asset Ratio 

  

Cash + Receivables + 

Other Current Assets 

  

0.013 : 1 0.007 : 1 

    Current Liabilities   

  

Current Ratio 

  

Current Assets 

  

0.31 : 1 0.41 : 1 

    

Current Liabilities 

  

2. Solvency        

  

Debt to Equity Ratio 

  

Long Term Debt 

  

1.44 : 1 1.33 : 1 

    

Equity 

  

3. Profitability           

  
 Net Profit Margin 

  Net Income   
0.00 0.00 

   
Total Revenue 

  

  
 Return on Equity 

  Net Income   
0.00 0.00 

    
Stockholder's Equity 

  

4. Leverage           

  

Debt to Total Asset Ratio 

  

Total Liabilities 

  

0.64 : 1 0.61 : 1   

 

Total Asset 

  

  Asset To Equity Ratio   

Total Asset 

  

2.80 : 1 2.56 : 1 

     

Equity 

  

5. Interest Rate Coverage Ratio   

Earnings Before Interests 

& Taxes    
0.00 0.00 

      

Interest Expense 

  

 




